
 

    STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 
 BUREAU OF PURCHASE AND PROPERTY 
 STATE HOUSE ANNEX 
 25 CAPITOL STREET 
 CONCORD, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03301-6398 
 
 
 ADDENDUM #4 TO RFP NO. 2013-157 
 
 
*DATE OF BID OPENING: 3/27/2013               TIME OF BID OPENING: 12:00 NOON 
*Please note change in date and time for bid opening. 

  

FOR: Performance Contract for Buildings on Hazen Drive, State Office Park East 
 
**Notice – Site plans are now available online. A password can be obtained by signing and 
submitting the non-disclosure agreement available in Addendum #1.** 
 
 
CLARIFY THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION: 

 
 Page 13, 2.0 Proposal Requirements and Instructions – Please insert the following 

and adjust the numbering accordingly: 
 
2.1. General Instructions and Proposal Format  
2.1.1 Minimum Criteria to Bid 
2.1.2. Submission Requirements  
2.1.3. Information Required in Proposals and Instructions for Packaging  

2.1.4. Proposal Format  

2.1.5. Certification of Independent Price Determination  

2.1.6. Proprietary Data  

2.1.7. Proposer Acceptance of Sample Agreement  
2.1.8. Proposer Signature Block  
2.1.9. Standardized Written and Electronic Forms 
 
 Page 13, Please note the following change: 

 
2.5. Financial Approach and Guarantees  
2.5.1. Pricing Approach  

- Cost for Detailed Investment Grade Energy Study  
- Proposed Measure Costs  

2.5.2. Energy and Cost Savings  
2.5.3. Guarantees  

 2.5.4. Financing Approach 
 

 Page 16, Section 2.1.4 Proposal Format – Please insert the following after Section E 
and before APP. B-1: 

 



 

APP. A Financial Submittals Identified in Section 2.2.3 
 

 Page 17, 2.1.7 Proposer Acceptance of Sample Agreement – Please note the 
following clarifications 

 
A sample “Agreement for Guaranteed Energy Performance” relating to the proposed 
energy performance contract is located in Appendix E of this RFP. 
 

 Page 55 – Please note the following clarification to the first sentence: 
 
The State of New Hampshire Contractor Agreement, Form P-37, attached hereto as 
Appendix D, provides for standard contract clauses and is hereby made a part of this 
Agreement to Perform a Detailed Feasibility Study as if set forth fully herein. 
 

 Page 56 – Please label the P-37 as Appendix D 
 

 Appendix E, Agreement for Guaranteed Energy Savings – On page 3, definition of 
Detailed Feasibility Study, note the following clarification: 

 
See Section 4 of this document and the State RFP #2013-157 “Performance Contract for 
Buildings on Hazen Drive, State Office Park East”. 
 
 For reference, http://www.gencourt.state.nh.us/rsa/html/I/21-I/21-I-19-d.htm  
 For reference, see 2005 Baseline Data - attached 

 

**ATTACH SPREADSHEET OF 2005 BASELINE DATA** 
 

BID CONTACT: Karen Rantamaki 
TEL. NO.: 603/271-2698 
 
NOTE:  IN THE EVENT THAT YOUR BID INVITATION HAS BEEN SENT TO THIS OFFICE PRIOR TO RECEIVING THIS ADDENDUM, 

RETURN ADDENDUM WITHIN THE SPECIFIED TIME WITH ANY CHANGES YOU MAY WISH TO MAKE AND MARK ON THE 

REMITTANCE ENVELOPE BID INVITATION NUMBER AND OPENING DATE.  RETURNED ADDENDA WILL SUPERSEDE 

PREVIOUSLY SUBMITTED BID. 

 
BIDDER____________________________ ADDRESS ____________________________ 
 
BY________________________________         ____________________________ 
   (this document must be signed) 
    
_______________________________TEL. NO.____________________________ 
   (please type or print name) 
 

 
 

 

http://www.gencourt.state.nh.us/rsa/html/I/21-I/21-I-19-d.htm


RFP 2013-157


Performance Contract for State office                                 Park East, Hazen Drive

Questions and Answers

Q: Are there other milestones that need to be met by the contractor once a final contract is executed?

A: Yes. These milestones will be determined once the scope of the work is more defined, after the bid period and then again after the detailed feasibility study is completed.

Q: Appendix E, Agreement for Guaranteed Energy Savings references Exhibits 1-7. What are these exhibits?

A: These exhibits do not exist at this time, but will be generated throughout the process of performing the detailed feasibility study and other steps in the contract process. Appendix E is a sample contract for work to be performed, and that scope of work has not yet been defined. The exhibits are intended to be as follows, but are subject to change if necessary to facilitate the execution of the contract.


Exhibit 1 – Energy Conservation Measure Descriptions



Exhibit 2 – Subcontractor and Equipment Schedules



Exhibit 3 – Compensation Schedule



Exhibit 4 – Operation, Maintenance, and Service Responsibilities


Exhibit 5 – Energy Savings Guarantee, Measurement and Verification Plan, and Commissioning Procedures


Exhibit 6 – Installation Schedule


Exhibit 7 – Standards of Service and Comfort


Q: Would the State consider replacing dual-fueled (natural gas and #2 fuel oil) boilers in the Health and Welfare Building with boilers that burn natural gas only?

A: The State would consider this.


Q: The Health and Welfare Building cooling tower makeup water has a meter for obtaining credit for sewer charges. Is this system currently used? Are water discharge credits obtained by DAS?


A: This system is not currently used and credits are not currently obtained.

Q: Lighting controls are stable once installed and are not serviced. Is it acceptable to provide an inventory of replacement lighting control devices in case of failures after the warranty period?

A: For stand alone controls such as occupancy sensors, this is okay. For lighting control systems, proper functionality is the responsibility of the vendor.

Q: Is the vendor expected to provide burner efficiency testing and boiler tune-up each year of the maintenance contract?

A: yes

Q: Is replacement of major equipment coverage requested as part of the maintenance agreement?

A: No.

Q: Does the utility pricing for the baseline included in Addendum #2 reflect the supply agreements in Addendum #3?

A: Yes.

Q: If the entire project meets the 20 year payback requirement and costs and savings identified for each building, must the 20 year payback apply to each building?

A: Yes. 

Q: Addendum #3 page 6-7 financing: Is the State requesting fixed semi-annual payments at a 2% interest rate over the entire 20 year financing term?

A: Yes, State is providing own financing at this estimated rate.

Q: Addendum #3 page 6-7 financing lease term not to exceed 20 years: Does the 20 year term include the construction period or does the 20 year term start at the end of the construction period?


A: The payback period of 20 years starts upon substantial completion of the overall construction project.

Q: Per section 2.1.1 on page 14 do you only want vendors to include a maximum of five (5) references or is it OK  to include more than five (5)?


A: Please include only 5 references.

Q: Per section 2.1.1 on page 14 minimum criteria should we simply verify that we meet these criteria or should we include verification as part of the RFP response? If so where should this be included?


A: Documentation must be provided. This information will be reviewed and a determination will be made as to whether the bidder meets the minimum qualifications to bid. Only after this determination is made will the remainder of the proposal be reviewed. This information can be submitted as a stand alone document, or included in the very front of the binder submitted. It should be easily located to facilitate qualification determination.

Q: Can you please confirm what should be included in the “proposal cover” referenced on page 15 as item A.1.

A: The proposal cover sheet should include the RFP # and title along with the name and basic information for the company submitting the proposal.

Q: Is it possible to get 15 minute or hourly electric usage interval data for each of the four buildings in the RFP?


A: You can obtain interval data for the one master electric meter that serves the entire Hazen Drive campus. If you are interested in obtaining that data, please submit a utility interval data request form to me for approval


Q: Please clarify the scope of the metering requirement listed under the Building Controls and Monitoring description. Twelve meters are referenced. Do these meters currently exist and do you wish to have them replaced with a consistent brand?


A: Yes, they exist. Yes, the State would like consistency.


Q: Do you wish to have new meters installed in these buildings where meters do not exist?


A: No.


Q: There is a desire to capture real time usage information. To what level of detail would you like this? Hourly, 15 minute, etc? What parameters do you wish to capture and what is the intended purpose of the data? If these meters shall be used for billing reconciliation then is system integrity and local data storage important?

A: At a minimum, this data will be used to apportion the main electric bill between all of the individual buildings. For this reason, there needs to be the ability to store and access historical data. Also, the ability to access this data from one central location is necessary. Any other recommended features of this data monitoring system are at the discretion of the bidders. 


Electricity

		Facility Name		Account #		Fiscal Month Name		Energy Usage (units)		Energy Usage (kBTU)		Overall Monthly Cost		Supplier Cost		Delivery Cost		Vendor Name

		Div. of Motor Vehicles		1052511-1049360		July		44,279		151,124		$4,115.41		$2,439.33		$1,620.86		Unitil Northern

		Div. of Motor Vehicles		1052511-1049360		August		32,471		110,824		$2,979.33		$1,788.84		$1,186.90		Unitil Northern

		Div. of Motor Vehicles		1052511-1049360		September		51,170		174,643		$4,602.92		$2,720.29		$1,882.63		Unitil Northern

		Div. of Motor Vehicles		1052511-1049360		October		48,013		163,868		$4,273.28		$2,552.46		$1,720.82		Unitil Northern

		Div. of Motor Vehicles		1052511-1049360		November		38,955		132,953		$3,446.23		$2,070.91		$1,375.32		Unitil Northern

		Div. of Motor Vehicles		1052511-1049360		December		41,895		142,988		$3,774.98		$2,227.21		$1,547.77		Unitil Northern

		Div. of Motor Vehicles		1052511-1049360		January		44,505		151,896		$3,930.42		$2,366.02		$1,564.40		Unitil Northern

		Div. of Motor Vehicles		1052511-1049360		February		37,306		127,325		$3,372.82		$1,983.28		$1,389.54		Unitil Northern

		Div. of Motor Vehicles		1052511-1049360		March		58,995		201,350		$5,251.76		$3,136.34		$2,115.42		Unitil Northern

		Div. of Motor Vehicles		1052511-1049360		April		62,685		213,944		$5,714.64		$3,332.45		$2,373.15		Unitil Northern

		Div. of Motor Vehicles		1052511-1049360		May		56,826		193,947		$5,766.86		$3,650.23		$2,116.63		Unitil Northern

		Div. of Motor Vehicles		1052511-1049360		June		48,314		164,896		$5,112.38		$3,236.68		$1,875.70		Unitil Northern

		Health & Welfare Building		1052511-1049360		July		693,704		2,367,612		$63,609.71		$38,216.19		$25,393.52		Unitil Northern

		Health & Welfare Building		1052511-1049360		August		757,172		2,584,228		$69,388.99		$41,712.63		$27,676.36		Unitil Northern

		Health & Welfare Building		1052511-1049360		September		571,899		1,951,891		$51,444.42		$30,403.26		$21,041.16		Unitil Northern

		Health & Welfare Building		1052511-1049360		October		597,635		2,039,728		$53,191.03		$31,771.40		$21,419.63		Unitil Northern

		Health & Welfare Building		1052511-1049360		November		558,355		1,905,666		$49,396.09		$29,683.19		$19,712.90		Unitil Northern

		Health & Welfare Building		1052511-1049360		December		586,529		2,001,823		$52,849.77		$31,181.01		$21,668.76		Unitil Northern

		Health & Welfare Building		1052511-1049360		January		658,427		2,247,211		$58,147.12		$35,003.20		$23,143.92		Unitil Northern

		Health & Welfare Building		1052511-1049360		February		513,246		1,751,709		$46,401.85		$27,285.16		$19,116.69		Unitil Northern

		Health & Welfare Building		1052511-1049360		March		689,891		2,354,598		$61,413.46		$36,675.93		$24,737.53		Unitil Northern

		Health & Welfare Building		1052511-1049360		April		727,146		2,481,749		$66,289.84		$38,656.43		$27,528.58		Unitil Northern

		Health & Welfare Building		1052511-1049360		May		961,307		3,280,939		$97,556.05		$61,749.74		$35,806.31		Unitil Northern

		Health & Welfare Building		1052511-1049360		June		1,019,773		3,480,485		$107,908.13		$68,317.26		$39,590.87		Unitil Northern

		Morton Building		1052511-1049360		July		221,395		755,621		$20,577.05		$12,196.66		$8,104.31		Unitil Northern

		Morton Building		1052511-1049360		August		191,876		654,873		$17,605.15		$10,570.45		$7,013.51		Unitil Northern

		Morton Building		1052511-1049360		September		254,345		868,079		$22,879.24		$13,521.45		$9,357.79		Unitil Northern

		Morton Building		1052511-1049360		October		231,220		789,154		$20,579.20		$12,292.11		$8,287.09		Unitil Northern

		Morton Building		1052511-1049360		November		168,805		576,131		$14,933.70		$8,973.99		$5,959.71		Unitil Northern

		Morton Building		1052511-1049360		December		174,762		596,463		$15,747.09		$9,290.68		$6,456.41		Unitil Northern

		Morton Building		1052511-1049360		January		188,496		643,337		$16,646.49		$10,020.80		$6,625.69		Unitil Northern

		Morton Building		1052511-1049360		February		148,096		505,450		$13,389.08		$7,873.03		$5,516.05		Unitil Northern

		Morton Building		1052511-1049360		March		196,252		669,808		$17,470.15		$10,433.12		$7,037.03		Unitil Northern

		Morton Building		1052511-1049360		April		189,448		646,586		$17,270.92		$10,071.41		$7,172.20		Unitil Northern

		Morton Building		1052511-1049360		May		176,792		603,390		$17,941.31		$11,356.25		$6,585.06		Unitil Northern

		Morton Building		1052511-1049360		June		180,660		616,592		$19,116.67		$12,102.87		$7,013.80		Unitil Northern

		Safety Building		1052511-1049360		July		472,309		1,611,991		$43,897.71		$26,019.54		$17,289.20		Unitil Northern

		Safety Building		1052511-1049360		August		461,977		1,576,728		$42,387.71		$25,450.36		$16,886.33		Unitil Northern

		Safety Building		1052511-1049360		September		573,405		1,957,031		$51,444.42		$30,483.27		$21,096.54		Unitil Northern

		Safety Building		1052511-1049360		October		341,145		1,164,328		$30,362.75		$18,135.90		$12,226.85		Unitil Northern

		Safety Building		1052511-1049360		November		493,430		1,684,077		$43,652.35		$26,231.65		$17,420.70		Unitil Northern

		Safety Building		1052511-1049360		December		365,085		1,246,035		$32,896.29		$19,408.59		$13,487.70		Unitil Northern

		Safety Building		1052511-1049360		January		386,155		1,317,947		$34,102.18		$20,528.71		$13,573.47		Unitil Northern

		Safety Building		1052511-1049360		February		410,372		1,400,598		$37,101.04		$21,816.11		$15,284.93		Unitil Northern

		Safety Building		1052511-1049360		March		233,576		797,195		$20,792.69		$12,417.33		$8,375.36		Unitil Northern

		Safety Building		1052511-1049360		April		376,110		1,283,663		$34,287.85		$19,994.70		$14,238.92		Unitil Northern

		Safety Building		1052511-1049360		May		350,427		1,196,008		$35,562.34		$22,509.78		$13,052.56		Unitil Northern

		Safety Building		1052511-1049360		June		395,140		1,348,611		$41,812.00		$26,471.42		$15,340.58		Unitil Northern





Thermal

		Facility Name		Fuel Description		Account #		Fiscal Month Name		Energy Usage (units)		Energy Usage (kBTU)		Overall Monthly Cost		Supplier Cost		Delivery Cost		Vendor Name		Notes

		Health & Welfare Building		Fuel Oil		813478		September		13498		1889720		16802.57		0		0		Irving Oil Co		Units are gallons

		Health & Welfare Building		Fuel Oil		813478		October		13002		1820280		20251.63		0		0		Irving Oil Co

		Health & Welfare Building		Fuel Oil		813478		November		25896		3625440		37886.37		0		0		Irving Oil Co

		Health & Welfare Building		Fuel Oil		813478		December		21002		2940280		25503.08		0		0		Irving Oil Co

		Health & Welfare Building		Fuel Oil		813478		January		35103		4914420		44424.1		0		0		Irving Oil Co

		Health & Welfare Building		Fuel Oil		813478		February		20501		2870140		28943.51		0		0		Irving Oil Co

		Health & Welfare Building		Fuel Oil		813478		March		25499		3569860		40924.47		0		0		Irving Oil Co

		Health & Welfare Building		Fuel Oil		813478		April		12996		1819440		20777.35		0		0		Irving Oil Co

		Health & Welfare Building		Fuel Oil		813478		May		20006		2800840		30000.76		0		0		Irving Oil Co

		Health & Welfare Building		Fuel Oil		813478		June		20503		2870420		34138.56		0		0		Irving Oil Co

		Health & Welfare Building		Natural Gas		56434-13870		July		15864		1586400		15015.12		13238.51		1776.61		Liberty Utilities		Units are therms

		Health & Welfare Building		Natural Gas		56434-13870		August		2304		230400		2430.82		1922.69		508.13		Liberty Utilities

		Health & Welfare Building		Natural Gas		56434-13870		September		1639		163900		1758.91		1321.03		437.88		Liberty Utilities

		Health & Welfare Building		Natural Gas		56434-13870		October		1558		155800		1801.28		1334.43		466.85		Liberty Utilities

		Health & Welfare Building		Natural Gas		56434-13870		November		2644		264400		3304.14		2514.44		789.7		Liberty Utilities

		Health & Welfare Building		Natural Gas		56434-13870		December		3315		331500		3972.8		3073.67		899.13		Liberty Utilities

		Health & Welfare Building		Natural Gas		56434-13870		January		4306		430600		4990.24		3934.82		1055.42		Liberty Utilities

		Health & Welfare Building		Natural Gas		56434-13870		February		3694		369400		4372.8		3406.24		966.56		Liberty Utilities

		Health & Welfare Building		Natural Gas		56434-13870		March		2231		223100		2970.6		2284.32		686.28		Liberty Utilities

		Health & Welfare Building		Natural Gas		56434-13870		April		2231		223100		2970.6		2284.32		686.28		Liberty Utilities

		Health & Welfare Building		Natural Gas		56434-13870		May		1787		178700		2457.55		1901.9		555.65		Liberty Utilities

		Health & Welfare Building		Natural Gas		56434-13870		June		1838		183800		2115.97		1628.28		487.69		Liberty Utilities

		Div. of Motor Vehicles		Natural Gas		56434-1388100		July		218		21800		261.86		181.92		79.94		National Grid (MA)

		Div. of Motor Vehicles		Natural Gas		56434-1388100		August		228		22800		269.82		190.27		79.55		National Grid (MA)

		Div. of Motor Vehicles		Natural Gas		56434-1388100		September		431		43100		474.63		345.53		129.1		National Grid (MA)

		Div. of Motor Vehicles		Natural Gas		56434-1388100		October		3439		343900		3680.63		2830.3		850.33		National Grid (MA)

		Div. of Motor Vehicles		Natural Gas		56434-1388100		November		2451		245100		2835.09		2228.45		606.64		National Grid (MA)

		Div. of Motor Vehicles		Natural Gas		56434-1388100		December		3024		302400		3487.67		2749.42		738.25		National Grid (MA)

		Div. of Motor Vehicles		Natural Gas		56434-1388100		January		3240		324000		3142.44		2579.36		563.08		National Grid (MA)

		Div. of Motor Vehicles		Natural Gas		56434-1388100		February		2861		286100		2797.33		2277.64		519.69		National Grid (MA)

		Div. of Motor Vehicles		Natural Gas		56434-1388100		March		1747		174700		1750.07		1390.79		359.28		National Grid (MA)

		Div. of Motor Vehicles		Natural Gas		56434-1388100		April		1777		177700		1816.63		1480.95		335.68		National Grid (MA)

		Div. of Motor Vehicles		Natural Gas		56434-1388100		June		1027		102700		1115.69		891.54		224.15		National Grid (MA)

		Morton Building		Natural Gas		5643418700		July		231		23100		319.81		183.6		136.21		National Grid (MA)

		Morton Building		Natural Gas		5643418700		August		182		18200		280.85		151.88		128.97		National Grid (MA)

		Morton Building		Natural Gas		5643418700		September		328		32800		438		273.72		164.28		National Grid (MA)

		Morton Building		Natural Gas		5643418700		October		3574		357400		3661.56		2839.9		821.66		National Grid (MA)

		Morton Building		Natural Gas		5643418700		November		5297		529700		5609.17		4456.9		1152.27		National Grid (MA)

		Morton Building		Natural Gas		5643418700		December		7625		762500		8616.25		6932.65		1683.6		National Grid (MA)

		Morton Building		Natural Gas		5643418700		January		9968		996800		11205.53		9062.91		2142.62		National Grid (MA)

		Morton Building		Natural Gas		5643418700		February		10691		1069100		11995.38		9720.26		2275.12		National Grid (MA)

		Morton Building		Natural Gas		5643418700		March		9915		991500		11146.83		9014.72		2132.11		National Grid (MA)

		Morton Building		Natural Gas		5643418700		April		5637		563700		6398.58		5125.16		1273.42		National Grid (MA)

		Morton Building		Natural Gas		5643418700		May		4418		441800		5068.77		4053.52		1015.25		National Grid (MA)

		Morton Building		Natural Gas		5643418700		June		2934		293400		3381.2		2686.37		694.83		National Grid (MA)

		Safety Building		Natural Gas		5643413900		July		1440		144000		1536.88		1146.67		390.21		National Grid (MA)

		Safety Building		Natural Gas		5643413900		August		1574		157400		1740.76		1313.5		427.26		National Grid (MA)

		Safety Building		Natural Gas		5643413900		September		2426		242600		2609.14		2024.5		584.64		National Grid (MA)

		Safety Building		Natural Gas		5643413900		October		3734		373400		3840.04		2986.83		853.21		National Grid (MA)

		Safety Building		Natural Gas		5643413900		November		4155		415500		4522.26		3595.32		926.94		National Grid (MA)

		Safety Building		Natural Gas		5643413900		December		6758		675800		7934.56		6422.8		1511.76		National Grid (MA)

		Safety Building		Natural Gas		5643413900		January		7746		774600		8888.17		7185.96		1702.21		National Grid (MA)

		Safety Building		Natural Gas		5643413900		February		8062		806200		9121.11		7367.06		1754.05		National Grid (MA)

		Safety Building		Natural Gas		5643413900		March		7515		751500		8586.76		6930.33		1656.43		National Grid (MA)

		Safety Building		Natural Gas		5643413900		April		4204		420400		5212.74		4223.34		989.4		National Grid (MA)

		Safety Building		Natural Gas		5643413900		May		4199		419900		5442.88		4471.1		971.78		National Grid (MA)

		Safety Building		Natural Gas		5643413900		June		2542		254200		2911.54		2294.41		617.13		National Grid (MA)





